

Compliments of:



Accountants and advisors in...

taxation, business structuring, profit growth, and business strategies.

Disclaimer

This e-book has been written to provide information about self-improvement. Every effort has been made to make this e-book as complete and accurate as possible. However, there may be mistakes in typography or content. Also, this e-book provides information on self-improvement only up to the publishing date. Therefore, this e-book should be used as a guide not as the ultimate source of web hosting information.

The purpose of this e-book is to educate. The author and the publisher does not warrant that the information contained in this e-book is fully complete and shall not be responsible for any errors or omissions. The author and publisher shall have neither liability nor responsibility to any person or entity with respect to any loss or damage caused or alleged to be caused directly or indirectly by this e-book.

Table of Contents

Introduction	4
Just What Is Time Management?	5
Why Do I Need to Manage My Time Effectively Anyway?	6
What Happens When We Don't Manage Our Time Effectively?	7
How Do I Get Started With Good Time Management?10	0
Refining the Process of Time Management1	5
Can Time Management Become An Obsession?1	.7
So How Do I Stop Obsessing And Get Back On Track?2	0
Keeping It Real - Setting Realistic Goals With Your Time Management2	2
Conclusion	7

Introduction

Just about everyone has heard of time management. Countless books have been written on the subject and countless motivational speakers pontificate on the idea. There are even television shows that occasionally use time management as the main focus of a program, either demonstrating how to do it, why to do it, and what happens if you don't do it.

The problem with this overload of exposure and information is that many people are still left wondering what they are doing wrong. They try all the tricks, tips, and procedures that various experts urge them to incorporate into their lives. Yet, they still can't seem to organise their lives so that they are masters of their time.

Part of the issue is that people sometimes are not clear on exactly what time management is and what it can do. As with many things, we sometimes attempt to make this concept much more complicated than it actually is. As a result, we become so rigid in how we attempt to manage our time that we defeat our own purpose. So is it any wonder that we decide that the effort is just not worth it, and go back to simple reacting to what is happening around us rather than proactively taking control?

If you've not completely given up on attempting to integrate sound time management ideas and strategies into your life, keep reading. Rather than attempting to rehash all the many concepts, theories, and other complicated presentations of this simple principle, let's explore the basics of time management and then come to some conclusions on how to pick and

choose the right approaches and the right settings to make use of them.

Before we get into any theories on how to engage in time management, it's important to define just exactly what we mean by the term. Once established, it will be easier to move on to what to do and when to do it.

Just What Is Time Management?

Forget all the complicated and sometimes confusing definitions you've heard in the past. Time management is actually very simple. It is the way you choose to spend your time.

Whether you realise it or not, you already do engage the process of time management. You simply can't help it. If you are living and breathing, and make any move to do anything, you are applying a process in time management. In short, you are choosing what to do with your time.

What this means is that there is good time management and bad time management. When you choose to engage in productive or good time management, you are organising the tasks or actions you want to accomplish into a logical and cohesive progression that will allow you to complete each and every task within an equitable time frame. At its best, this type of time management does not create stress or drive up your blood pressure. Instead, it actually makes the day run smoother, and empowers you a little more each time you can strike one action item off your list.

Good time management is a proactive process. You define what must be done within a given period of time, prioritise those action items and then develop a plan of action that will make it possible to successfully accomplish each one within the time allotted. With your plan laid out, you then take the initiative to start at the beginning and keep going until everything on your list is done.

By contrast, bad time management does not make the day pleasant at all. You are much more likely to feel constantly stressed out, as action items appear as if from nowhere. People are constantly demanding to know what a report was not completed or why there is no food in the cupboard.

Bad time management leaves you feeling powerless to do anything to improve the situation. The hopeless feeling continues to grow until you more or less shut down, deciding that those action items weren't that important anyway. You put yourself into a state where you basically move through the day, never quite getting a handle on what is going on and only accomplishing something when pressured by outside forces to do so. At the end of the day, there are still many action items left to accomplish, leaving you a general feeling of having failed.

If you are still reading, then there is a good chance that you recognise a bit of yourself in both these scenarios. Most of us do tend to engage in both good and bad time management from time to time. The goal will be to rethink the way we apply time management principles so that we are exercising good time management more of the time and finding ourselves bogged down due to bad time management much less often.

Why Do I Need to Manage My Time Effectively Anyway?

We all know people that seem to drift through life, never worried about anything and never seeming to accomplish anything. At some point, a friend or relative swoops in and takes up their slack. Or they simply roll with the punches, do no more than they have to do to get by, and let everything else take care of itself.

Is that the way you want to be? If so, stop reading and take a nap.

There is only one good reason to take control of your time and manage it to best advantage: you want to get things done and make life better for yourself.

Is that a selfish thing? You bet it is! But just think of all the benefits that come out of this type of selfish behaviour. Because you proactively manage your time, you benefit from creating more spare time to spend doing the things you love. If you have family or close friends, that means more time to be around people who make you laugh and who care about you. It can also mean you acquire a reputation for being an efficient employee who gets the job done. As a result, you have a better chance of getting a raise, a promotion, or an offer for a better job with more benefits.

So go ahead and be a little selfish about the way you manage your time. You benefit, your loved ones benefit, and your employer benefits. That means there is not much of a down side for anyone.

What Happens When We Don't Manage Our Time Effectively?

When we make a choice, either consciously or by default, to not take hold of our time and use it to best advantage, life can get pretty rough. You will most certainly miss out on a lot of good things, many of which will never come your way again. Even everyday tasks will become overwhelming and seemingly impossible to keep up with.

It doesn't matter whether we are talking about things around the house, your friends, or conditions at work. If you don't manage your time well, you will lose a lot.

Here are some examples of how failing to manage your time properly can have a negative impact on your home:

- 1. There's no food in the kitchen. Because you never got around to going to the supermarket, you are now down to a couple of cans of beans, half a loaf of stale bread, and a mostly empty tub of butter. Fixing a quick lunch is not going to be a pleasant activity to day.
- Of course, you can just get some take-away delivered. That is, you
 could if you had ever gotten around to making a payment on your
 credit card. However, since your payment is now several days late,
 your credit card provider has suspended your credit. So much for
 ordering pizza today.
- 3. There is the option of paying cash or writing a cheque. Unfortunately, your last pay check is sitting on the counter, right next to your car keys, never cashed or deposited into your bank account. You've not gotten around to depositing it in the bank yet, so if you write a cheque, it is likely to bounce, and all the money you have left in the house is that big glass jar full of silver coins that is under the kitchen sink. Try paying for pizza with that.
- 4. Things would be a little less dire if you had set up the direct deposit at work for your pay. Unfortunately, you still have the authorization form on your desk and haven't got around to turning it into the payroll department.

Get the picture? Home goes to seed because you never get around to doing the little things that keep a household running. Before too long, things begin to fall apart, creating a lot of stress and inconvenience that could have been avoided if you had simply managed your time a little better. Home is not the only place that bad time management can rear its ugly head. Consider these examples from the workplace:

- 1. You're ten minutes late to work again. That's because you didn't get around to setting the alarm clock last night and overslept. If that wasn't bad enough, you can't even slip in undetected. The boss has already been looking for you this morning.
- 2. There is a reason your boss wants to see you. Your weekly report is already two days overdue. What your boss doesn't know is that you are only half way through the task, since you seem to get side-tracked by something else every time you attempt to finish up the report. Things look pretty bleak as far as getting it done today, since you are already behind with today's tasks, thanks to being late once again.
- 3. Poor performance and a growing reputation for tardiness is not winning you any fans at work. Some of your co-workers used to take pity on you, and would pitch in to help when you got buried under a pile of assignments. These days, they just shake their heads and walk away. Some of them are starting to wonder why you aren't let go, so someone who will take the job seriously can step in and straighten out your mess.
- 4. Want a raise or a promotion? Forget it. Your boss is not about to recommend you for a raise when you are habitually late to work and can't handle your present assignments. In fact, you've just been given your second disciplinary warning in a month. With the next one, you'll be suspended for a few days. If that doesn't help, you will soon be looking for another job.

People sometimes think that the process of time management focuses on tasks that are somewhat complicated and have a series of steps that must be completed. While there is no doubt that time management principles apply to detail and labour intensive tasks, they also apply to the everyday

mundane tasks as well. This is where many people trip up and get themselves into a lot of trouble.

If you don't get anything else from these examples, take away this one simple fact. Poor time management creates a snowball effect that eventually causes you and others around you a lot of grief. Life is a lot easier when you master the little things and keep the boat on an even keel.

How Do I Get Started With Good Time Management?

As with many roads, the path to effective time management is paved with all sorts of good intentions. People sometimes have the dream, but lack the drive to take that first step and then keep moving up the path. Often, the lack of progress is for no reason other than a failure to prepare for the trip. Here is what you need to do if you are serious about leaving your disorganised ways behind and becoming the master of your own time.

A. Adjust Your Attitude

This is the step that many people leave out of the equation when they decide to get on the road to good time management. Unfortunately, not all those self-help books and seminars include any ideas on how to begin to change your outlook on life so that you can embrace the basics of managing your time effectively.

One of the easiest ways to initiate this change of heart is to make a list of the benefits you will immediately receive if you start managing your time to better advantage. Don't make the mistake of thinking that the list has to be loaded with all sorts of impressive advantages or big events. After all, it is the day to day tasks that usually give people the most satisfaction anyway.

For example, your list could include benefits like:

- More time to play with the kids
- The kitchen cupboard has real food in it that can be used to make a decent meal.
- The utilities will stay on all the time, because the bills will be paid on time.
- You'll get to see the opening scenes of the movie, catch the kick-off at the footy, and get the best bargains at the garage sale, all because from now on you will be on time. Your coworkers will be friendlier, since they are not waiting on you for something they need to get their jobs done.
- Your boss will remove the job advertisement he placed for your replacement.
- You will feel more relaxed at the end of the day, because you know there is not a bunch of old stuff to do when you get to work in the morning.

Zero in on what poor time management has taken away from you over time, and how much fun it will be to have all those things back. If that's not enough incentive to make some changes in the way you look at things, then you are probably dooming yourself to failure once again.

B. Start Small

It's hard to break old habits. That's what poor time management is, nothing more than a bad habit. As with many habits, you have to start with small changes if you want to succeed over the long term.

There are a couple of good reasons to begin with the little things and gradually incorporate more of the bigger things in your new time management scheme:

- You'll gain confidence. Nothing motivates people like a sense of accomplishment. It doesn't matter that it is only one small change, the important thing is you did it. And if you did it today, you can do it tomorrow, and the day after that. Each day you manage to repeat that one small time management process, you will feel more empowered to make another change for the better.
- People will notice. Loved ones and co-workers will see you
 are serious about learning how to practice effective time
 management, and begin to rally around you. True, their
 support may be tentative at first, especially if you've tried to
 become more organised in the past, but given up the effort
 after a day or two. But as you become consistently more
 dedicated to setting the little things in order, they will come
 around and compliment you on your efforts.
- You'll discover strategies and ideas that might work with some of the bigger things. As you master the little tasks that come during the day, you will probably begin to notice that some of the larger tasks can be addressed with the same approaches. This can be a good thing, as it helps you to brainstorm on ways to deal with different situations by using a tool you already have on hand and know how to use effectively. You'll become better at prioritising your action items. It won't take long for you to notice that the day went much smoother when you performed Task B before Task A.

Finding just the right order for those small daily tasks will allow you to move through them quicker and with more proficiency. As a result, you will begin to develop little pockets of time that can be devoted to other endeavours.

Your stress level will begin to decrease. The more in control you are
of your time and tasks, the less you will feel overwhelmed and unable
to cope. This ties directly back into building a sense of empowerment
and confidence in your ability to manage your time effectively. One
feeds off the other two, giving you a strength and focus you may have
never experienced before.

C. Reward Yourself

Think of it this way: if you won a prize, wouldn't you celebrate at least a little? Making forward strides with learning how to manage your time is something worth acknowledging and celebrating. Sure, the fact that you go to work on time every day for a whole week now might not seem like much to anybody else, but that is not the point. The point is you made a positive step that put you back in charge of a part of your life and you are now managing it properly.

Of course, it is important to make sure your reward does not create yet another time management disaster that has to be straightened out. But assuming you have some spare time on the way home Friday evening, why not reward yourself with some little something you will enjoy, like a cup of coffee from your favourite coffee shop or picking up a copy of a magazine you really enjoy?

Keep in mind that a reward does not have to be big, splashy, or expensive. As you are learning by taking control of the little tasks in your life, a lot of satisfaction can come from little things. So go right ahead and allow yourself a small reward and enjoy it to the fullest. And if you want to have more

rewards, continue to incrementally expand the control you have over your time.

D. Expect The Occasional Setback

Even the most proficient of time managers don't always hit the mark. As you begin the process of learning how to do a better job with your time, there will be situations where you overlook something or encounter circumstances that temporarily derail your newfound ability to get things done.

It is at this point that many people choose to decide they simply can't change and slip back into their old habits. While you certainly don't want to brush off a setback as being nothing of consequence, you also don't want to allow it to undermine all the progress you've made.

Instead of burying the setback or allowing it to lose confidence, try this third approach. Take a long look at all the circumstances surrounding the setback. Were there extenuating circumstances that you did not notice on the front end? Did something completely unforeseen arise as you were attempting to complete the task?

Knowing what happened and why it happened can be turned into a learning experience. By stepping back and examining the situation as dispassionately as you can, there is a good chance you can learn a few things from what appears to be a failure in managing your time effectively.

You may learn such valuable lessons as:

- Points to clarify or data to double-check before you attempt the same or similar tasks again.
- Additional tools or resources to assemble before attacking a task of this type.

- A more effective process to deal with the situation.
- Ways to defuse factors that led to the problem in the first place.

Never allow a setback to stop you in your tracks. Acknowledge it, learn from it, and then move on. Remember that you have other things that should be occupying your time.

Learning to implement solid time management practices and attitudes is an incremental process that involves the acquisition of knowledge, the application of what you learn, and the accumulation of personal experience. As you continue to move forward, your supply of all three components will increase, and your ability to manage your time will increase right along with them.

Refining the Process of Time Management

Some people look upon time management the same way they would a crossword puzzle, a short story, or a math problem. Puzzles, stories, and math problems have a defined beginning, a middle, and an end that is clearly identified. While the process of time management certainly does have a beginning, there is no real end to the process. It is ongoing, much like the way that a river continues to flow when there are no dams or other impediments to stop its flow.

Once you have created a solid beginning to your time management mindset and approaches, you will continue to refine them for the rest of your life. That is, you will do so if you do not make the mistake of assuming you have learned all there is to know about the subject.

Just as time continues to flow, the process of time management continues to evolve. Part of the reasons for this is that the world continues to change. As new situations arise or old situations are changed in some manner,

methodologies and approaches that worked very well a few years ago may not be so effective today. Hence, the need to create, learn and implement new ways of applying the basic principles of time management.

Not everyone who claims to be an excellent time manager grasps this basic understanding. They continue trying to fit new situations and settings into the same old mould they've used successfully in the past. Often, the result is much like attempting to shove a square peg into a round hole. It simply doesn't fit and slows progress down to a crawl.

In order to keep evolving in your understanding and use of time management, you must prevent yourself from getting too attached to any one way of doing things. There must always be a sense of openness to new ideas, new strategies and new ways to handle different tasks. Without this openness, there is a good chance that some very productive approaches will slip past, leaving you unprepared to deal with a number of situations.

If you are serious about continually refining your grasp of time management, you must:

- Keep an open mind. New situations are sometimes handled effectively
 with proven approaches. At other times, they call for brand new
 methodologies that must be learned. If you are flexible enough to
 consider these alternative solutions, you just might find a new way of
 saving time that will help you with other tasks on your list as well as this
 new one that just cropped up.
- Know your stuff, but remain teachable. It is easy to fall into the trap of thinking you know everything. True, you may know a lot. But there is always someone who knows something you don't. If you are serious about expanding the scope of your knowledge, be willing to listen and learn, even if the source appears to be an unlikely one.

• Give new ideas a test drive. It's not enough to be willing to consider new ideas or even learn the basics of them. You need to be willing to try them out before you decide your old way is better. Take the example of typing a letter. When word processing software became widely available, it was met with a considerable amount of opposition from typists who were able to type a business letter at an impressive speed and with no errors. If they could produce a professional letter using a typewriter, what good was using a desktop computer? Fortunately, people soon found that using the word processing software was much more efficient than the old reliable typewriter and after a brief period of transition, excellent typists quickly came to love the resources that were suddenly at their disposal. What would have happened if they had rejected the new technology out of hand?

There is always the potential to learn something new that will make it easier to organise your tasks and put your time to better use. Embrace this fact rather than fight it, and you are very likely to find that the process of time management becomes all the easier.

Can Time Management Become An Obsession?

While time management is a very good thing, there are situations where people tend to take the whole idea of using time wisely to the extreme. When this happens, the essential goal of managing your time gets lost in all the busy-ness and drive to cram too much into too little time. As a result, the process of time management ceases to be a help and becomes a severe hindrance instead.

There are several early warning signs that you are beginning to abuse time management rather than use it to best advantage:

A. You Multitask A Lot - All The Time Actually

In today's world, it is not unusual for people to handle more than one task at a time. This is perfectly all right, as long as the tasks in question can be conducted concurrently without causing a great deal of stress. For example, it is possible to participate on a conference call while also sending instant messages to the moderator of the conference. The two activities actually work together without any real difficulty.

However, many people attempt to conduct two or more labour-intensive tasks at the same time. This can lead to a great deal of inner conflict and possibly have a negative impact on the quality applied to all the tasks involved. In other words, instead of ending up with one task done well, you have two tasks that may be completed but are barely acceptable.

Some people find themselves unable to stop multitasking even when it is not necessary. The idea behind this approach is that the multitasking will make it easier to finish all the action items currently on the agenda and enjoy some well-earned downtime. Unfortunately, people who have become obsessed with multitasking in order to manage their time never get around to having any downtime. Instead, they finish one set of projects and immediately start looking for another set to do at once.

Multitasking as part of time management is fine, provided the tool is used with wisdom and discretion. When it becomes an end in and of itself rather than a means to reach a goal, it is time to step back and re-evaluate the situation.

B. You Feel Guilty If You Are Not Doing Something

Guilt can be an effective tool when it comes to keeping us on track. However, guilty feelings when there is nothing to feel guilty about is another matter altogether. When guilt creeps into the time management process, it is usually an indicator that the individual has begun to believe on some level that unless they are not actively engaged in some task, they are not managing their time well.

While it is important to take care of necessary tasks in a timely manner, human beings also need some time to simply relax and recharge. From this perspective, failing to include time for rest and recreation is actually a breach of good time management policies. By denying your mind and your body of what it needs to be healthy, you are actually defeating the purpose of time management, and setting yourself up for a fall at some future point.

C. You Become Hyper-Critical Of Others Who Do Not Do As You Do

One of the ways many people validate their actions is by comparing them with what other people do. After all, if others are employing the same approaches and methodologies to time management that we are, that means we are on the right track. However, when people do things differently from us and we immediately assume they are wrong and we are right, something has gone terribly wrong with our sense of time management.

Every person brings different talents and abilities to a given task. This means there may in fact be more than one right approach when tackling the same tasks or projects. People who have a balanced view of time management realise this and may even welcome the opportunity to learn something new. However, people who assume their way is the only right way will immediately be on the defensive and find fault with as many aspects of the

alternative method as possible.

Again, this negative point of view is not in keeping with true time management principles. Not only does this mindset make it impossible to be exposed to new ways of managing tasks and possibly saving time, it also can create a great deal of stress and friction for everyone concerned. As a result, everyone's ability to manage time effectively is impaired and no one progresses as quickly as they would if all parties would attempt to learn from one another.

The bottom line is that you can become so obsessed with time management that you actually begin to undo any good you've created and put yourself in a position where you are more likely to fail. When this happens, you may be worse off than when you didn't attempt any type of structured time management at all.

So How Do I Stop Obsessing And Get Back On Track?

Your first step in overcoming obsession is to realise you have a problem. Without admitting that you have lost your sense of perspective, there is no hope of ever recovering it. Understanding what your obsession is doing to yourself and those around you can serve as the motivation to make changes and begin the road back to using time management in a positive way.

In order to get yourself back on track, take the following actions:

A. Step Back and Attempt To See Yourself Through The Eyes of Others

This can be very hard to do, but it will make a huge difference in how quickly you regain your equilibrium. Look at how you've been applying time management basics for the last week, month, or six months, however long you suspect that a problem has been forming. Pretend someone other than

yourself was taking those same actions or approaches. Do they make sense? Were they productive or counterproductive over time? Did they lead to a sense of fulfilment or only create more issues to deal with? Some of what you see may come as a shock. That's okay, because at this point in time a little shock is a good thing.

B. Get a Grip on the Multitasking

While there are certainly times when doing two or more things simultaneously is in the best interests of using your time wisely, that is not always the case. Identify some instances when you had to redo tasks because they were not done as well as they should have been. Were you attempting to juggle too many tasks at the time, resulting in the inferior outcome? If so, now consider how much time you would have saved by prioritising those tasks rather than multitasking. You are likely to find that handling one task, then moving on to the second one would have actually used only a little more time than the multitasking, and quite a bit less than having to go back and redo one or both tasks.

C. Stop The Guilt

Remind yourself that you do a good job and that you do get things done properly and on time. That means you deserve the chance to shift gears and read a book, have a walk, or go for a swim. Your time is not being wasted when you engage in these kinds of activities, or any others that allow you to blow the cobwebs out of your head and reinvigorate your body and mind.

You are simply preparing yourself to manage your time effectively tomorrow as you take care of necessary tasks at the right time and in the right order. There is no reason to feel guilty about lingering over dinner, watching television or having a nap, as long as your tasks are on schedule or even completed for the day. Just remember that when tomorrow comes, you will be refreshed and ready to take on anything the day should bring.

Just as it is hard to get into the swing of developing productive time management attitudes and practices, it is likely to take some time to divest yourself of any bad habits that have crept in over time. Don't expect to make a complete recovery in a day or two. But just as when you are first learning how to manage your time well, reward yourself when you are able to move a little closer to a balanced perspective and minimise your obsessive behaviour a little more.

Keeping It Real - Setting Realistic Goals With Your Time Management

One of the best ways to not get discouraged with your time managing efforts is to be realistic about how you approach your list of things to do and schedule out time to accomplish them. This means understanding how long each task can reasonably be expected to take, how much concentration is involved, and whether or not you can work on another task at the same time without impairing the quality of your efforts.

In some cases, it is relatively easy to combine necessary tasks and save time. For example, you may find that instead of making a trip to the supermarket and then moving on to an independent butcher, you simply buy your meat from the meat section inside the supermarket. This effectively allows you to manage two tasks at one time, and still enjoy the same level of quality with each.

However, not all situations are as simplistic as combining a couple of errands. At some point, you will be faced with tasks that require your full concentration and cannot be balanced with other tasks at the same time. The trick is to know the difference between the two scenarios.

You can identify a task that will require your full and undivided attention by the following:

- The task requires attention to a great deal of detail. Projects of this type are usually best accomplished by themselves. For example, it is not a good idea to attempt to make client calls while you are posting payments to customer invoices. Because it is important to apply the right amount to the correct invoice number under the correct client account, you don't need to be interrupted until the job is complete. Otherwise, your company receipts will be out of line, making it necessary to find time to isolate the origin of the problem and correct it at a later date.
- You are unfamiliar with the task. In general, it is not a good idea to attempt to multitask when learning to handle some new responsibility. In order to master the new task, all your focus should be on that task. This will help to keep the learning curve to a minimum and allow you to begin the process of integrating that new task into your daily agenda. Attempting to learn how to handle the task in a bits and pieces will only drag things out and put you further behind.
- The timing for the task is urgent. For example, your boss needs a
 report in time for his or her meeting right after lunch. Instead of
 working the report into your other and less important tasks,
 reorganise your schedule and make the report your priority. As soon
 as the report is done and turned in to your boss, you can get back to
 your other action items and continue on with your day.

Sometimes, the issue is not so much figuring out how to arrange your tasks to best advantage, but setting reasonable time aside to accomplish each one. To an extent, this can be forgiven when you are first taking on a new

task. After all, you've never done it before and must rely on second hand information to estimate the time you will need to do a good job. But failing to set reasonable time limits for tasks you have done for some time can make a good day into a bad one in no time at all.

There are two different ways that people tend to get in trouble with assigning time values to specific tasks:

- They don't allow enough time to complete the task properly. When this
 happens, one of two things is about to happen. First, the entire day may
 be thrown out of kilter because other tasks back up and create a
 bottleneck that cannot be addressed until you finish your current task.
 The other alternative is that you become frustrated and lose even more
 valuable time attempting to focus and get on with the task. Either way,
 your time management process will suffer.
- They allow too much time for the task to be completed. There is no real value in allowing a half hour to do a task that you know will take no more than five minutes to complete. While it is important to always build in some spare pockets of time into your schedule throughout the day, keep it within reason. You will still be able to deal with unexpected events that crop up at the last minute by setting aside ten to fifteen minutes for that five-minute task. At the same time, you will use each hour to better advantage and get more done. Whether running a household or on the job, that is important.

There is also the danger of trying to cram too many action items into a given time frame. Even the most efficient of time managers realise there are only so many hours in each day. Cutting corners in order to save time on various tasks may appear like efficient time management on the surface, but this approach can easily backfire. Tasks that are only half-done in order to move them out the door more quickly are much more likely to come right back. As

a result, the time savings you created before is quickly gobbled up as you have to sit down and redo the task, this time without taking the short cuts. While setting reasonable goals seems to come naturally to some people, others struggle with this part of effective time management. Here are a few suggestions that may help make it easier to evaluate each task and carve out an appreciable amount of time to devote to each item on your agenda.

- A. Begin with a defined start and end time for your workday. What this does is immediately allow you to determine how many hours you can reasonably devote to getting things done today. When you have a job, this step is pretty much defined for you, since there is usually a specific time to be at work and a specific time to leave. However, even if the process takes place in a household, setting a start and end time will make it much easier to schedule your time realistically.
- B. Take a look at each task and attempt to prioritise them to best advantage. Any tasks that must be done by a specific time of day should take priority during the scheduling. For example, if you have three tasks that must be done before lunch every day of the week, schedule them as early in the morning as possible. This will automatically provide you with some extra time later in the morning if there is an unanticipated snag with any of the three tasks. The chances of still making your lunchtime deadline will be much better.
- C. Assign a time allotment for each task, based on all data that is at your disposal. For tasks that you've done before, you will have a personal knowledge of how long it takes to manage them effectively. However, for new tasks, you may have to depend on input from others to set up a realistic goal for completion. If the task is new to everyone, then you may have to set aside the amount of time you used in the past for a different but somewhat similar task. Demonstrate some flexibility with your time allotments, since different factors can influence how long it

- takes to manage different tasks, even ones you've done for years.
- D. Ask for input, but don't rely solely on what others have to say. Since we've already established that proper time management involves being open to new methods and strategies, there is always the chance that a suggestion or idea from a third party will help you manage a task in a more efficient and timely manner. However, not every suggestion will be constructive, so don't automatically assume it will work. By all means, take it, look it over, and maybe even give it a try. But if it doesn't seem to have the potential to streamline the process and allow you to manage your time more efficiently, don't be backward about rejecting the suggestion and explaining why it is not practical. For all you know, doing so will prevent someone else from getting bogged down because they implemented a process that is really not all that efficient.
- E. Never stop evaluating the schedule you create. Situations and conditions change over time. What worked very well five years ago may not be the best option today. But unless you are willing to look into new options, this may slip right past you. In fact, others may fail to notice as well, especially if your usual schedule is still somewhat effective and does not disrupt others. But without this constant process of re-evaluation, you stand to miss out on some great tools that would help you manage your time to better effect.

While many of your time management goals are focused on the successful and timely completion of action items, a realistic approach to setting goals involves a little more than just getting things done. Don't forget to include these elements in your goal setting as well:

Time to play as well as time to work. Without some rest and recreation,
it is all too easy to begin viewing your daily activities as a repetitive grind
that leaves you feeling dehumanised. While you want to get things done

efficiently and on time, make sure you don't do so at the expense of taking your lunch hour or getting away from work on time. Life is a lot more than simply having a finished agenda at the end of the day.

• Face the fact that some days will be filled with unexpected factors that no one could possibly have foreseen. No matter how well refined your time management is, there are times when it will have to be revised at the last moment. Accept this as the way things go sometime and do not see it as a failure on your part to effectively manage your time. Instead, see it as an opportunity to accept a challenge and come out on top at the end of the day.

Conclusion

Effective time management is a lot more than simply walking through some proscribed steps in order to achieve some arbitrary end. More often, it is a chance to demonstrate creativity, wisdom, insight, and the ability to think on one's feet. In short, it is about making the most of what you have every day, and enjoying every minute of it.

There is no one right way to master time management, or even a single correct approach to implementing the concept of managing time into your life. Each situation is different. Fortunately, the basic ideas behind time management can be applied to any situation, whether you are a student pursuing an education, the overseer of a household, or the CEO of a company. Time management is for everyone, not just for a chosen few.

People who are truly great time managers know that you never stop learning how to do things a little better, a little more efficiently, and with a little more speed. But at the same time, they know that getting the job done

right is the main priority of proper time management. No amount of time saved is worth the cost of giving anything less than your best effort to any task. They also know that few things in life are as sweet as the realisation that at the end of the day, everything has been addressed and tomorrow will start off without having to worry about action items left undone.

Even if you don't consider yourself to be the best time manager in the world, take heart in the fact that just like the best of the lot, you can learn to improve and refine your time management skills. The process is never complete, but it is constantly moving forward every day. Take advantage of the opportunities to learn a little more and find creative ways to apply different time management ideas to your day. You may find that doing so will make you a much happier individual as you look back on a day well spent.